NATIONS CERD

D str.

International Convention on GENERAL

the Elimination

CERD U SR 1198
of all Forms of 14 March 1997
Racial Discrimination

Oiginal: ENGISH

COW TTEE ON THE ELI M NATI ON CF RACI AL DI SCRI M NATI ON
Fiftieth session
SUWARY RECORD CF THE 1198t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva,
on Tuesday, 11 March 1997, at 3 p.m

Chairnman: M. BANTON

CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPCRTS, COMMENTS AND | NFCRVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON ( conti nued)

Tenth to fourteenth periodic reports of Pakistan

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They shoul d be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 97-15866 (E)



CERD U SR 1198
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS, COMVENTS AND | NFORVATI ON SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES
UNDER ARTI CLE 9 OF THE CONVENTI ON (agenda item5) ( conti nued)

Tenth to fourteenth periodic reports of Pakistan (CERD J 299/ Add. 6)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. Akram M. Khan, M. Janjua and

M. Qazi (Pakistan) took seats at the Commttee table

2. M. AKRAM (Pakistan) said that an effort had been made to adhere to the
Conmittee's guidelines in the preparation of the report and to take into
account the Conmittee's previous observations. Pakistan's deep and consi stent
coomtnent to the elimnation of all forns of racial discrimnation was fully
reflected inits policies. It had participated actively in the drafting of
the Convention and had been anong the first to ratify it. It had played a
leading role in the opposition to, and ultimate elimnation of, apartheid and,
together with Nigeria, had initiated the International Convention on the

Suppr essi on and Puni shrment of the Grinme of Apartheid, to which it was also a
party. It believed in continuous and active efforts to elimnate new forns of
raci al discrimnation and xenophobi a.

3. Referring to article 1, paragraph 1, of the Convention, he stated that
there was no distinction based on race, colour, descent, or national or ethnic
originin Pakistan. As a result of waves of mgration into the Indus valley
over several thousands of years, the racial and ethnic conposition of the
peopl e of Pakistan was varied and conplex, naking it extrenely difficult to
di vide the population into racial or ethnic categories. A though the
Commttee's requests for data on the ethnic characteristics of the popul ation
had been noted, no question on ethnic origin had been asked in Pakistan's
decenni al census. In addition to reasons given in the Conmttee's guidelines
for States' reluctance to put that question, he observed that few, if any, of
t he peopl e of Pakistan woul d know what the questi on neant and how to answer

it. In order to accoombdate the Conmittee's concerns, however, data on
l'i ngui stic conposition, drawn from popul ati on projections, had been provi ded
as the closest approximation - in the case of Pakistan - to the requirenent

for informati on on the ethnic background of the population. A though it had
been noted from previous discussions with the Conmittee that the question of
religious mnorities was not considered to be strictly within the purview of
the Convention, information had been provided on religious mnorities since
they were the only “mnorities” in Pakistan.

4. Paki stan was a functioning denocracy and four general el ections had been
hel d since 1988. Despite the chall enges posed by underdevel opnment, politica
differences and external threats, denocratic structures had survived and grown
in strength, and the fundamental constitutionally-guaranteed hurman rights had
remai ned unfettered. Gtizens could air their grievances and seek redress
through a vigorously free press and an open and accessi bl e judicial system
Even in troubl ed tines, Pakistan's open society guarded agai nst any
institutional inposition of oppression, including racial discrimnation. Hs
del egation was willing to answer any questions and provide to the Commttee as
soon as possible any infornation that was not imediately avail abl e.



CERD CJ SR 1198
page 3

5. M. GARVALOV (Country Rapporteur) wel comed the resunption of the

di al ogue with Pakistan after a | apse of 10 years and hoped that the State
party woul d submt its next periodic report in accordance with article 9
paragraph 1, of the Convention. |In preparing his statement on the fourteenth
periodic report, he had based his comrents primarily on Pakistan's ninth and
fourteenth reports and had al so drawn on rel evant United Nations sources, such
as reports of the Conm ssion on Human R ghts, the Wrking G oup on Enforced or
I nvol untary Di sappearances, the United Nations H gh Conm ssioner for Refugees,
t he Special Rapporteur of the Conm ssion on Human Rights on the question of
religious intol erance, the Special Rapporteur on torture and the ILO Committee
of Experts on the Application of Conventions and Reconmendati ons. He had al so
consulted relevant nmaterials in the reports of the United States State
Department and of certain NG, such as Human Rights Watch, Amesty
International and the Lawers Conmittee for Human Rights.

6. He commended Paki stan's constructive approach in its fourteenth report,
whi ch suppl emented information given in the previous report, answered
guestions raised by Committee nenbers in 1987, gave an inpressive account of
nmeasures taken in respect of mnorities and reflected an effort to adhere to
the Commttee's guidelines. Pakistan's active cooperation with the two
Speci al Rapporteurs of the Conm ssion on Human Rights, inviting themto visit
the country in 1995 and 1996, was particul arly conmendabl e.

7. The fourteenth report provided valuable information and further
clarification on Pakistan's |egal framework, popul ation, |anguages, press
censorship, mnorities, various new institutional arrangenents and Afghan
refugees. He welconed the State party's commitnent to the elimnation of
racial discrimnation, its leading role in the elimnation of apartheid, its
concerted efforts to conbat new forns of racial discrimnation and xenophobi a,
its dedication to uphol ding and inpl ementing the provisions of the Convention,
its effort to translate the provisions of the Convention into its |ega
framework and the specific constitutional guarantees referred to in

paragraph 7 of the report. The conpletion of the process of denocratization
referred to in paragraph 8, was a very inportant achi evenent and he hoped t hat
the process woul d be nurtured further. Another achi everment had been the ful
restoration of the Constitution following the lifting of martial law He
noted from paragraph 13 that Islamc and cormon | aw conpl enent ed each ot her

8. Regardi ng the provision of data on ethnic origin, he recalled the
Commttee's concluding observations on the ninth periodic report in

paragraph 789 of the Conmttee's report to the General Assenbly (A 42/18) and
the reply by the representative of Pakistan thereto (para. 796) to the effect
that mnorities denoted religious mnorities, that ethnic origin was a purely
subjective criterion and that there was no single linguistic majority. Wile
he understood Paki stan's official views and positions, which appeared to be
unchanged, additional questions arose fromthe fourteenth report. The report

referred variously to “mnorities”, “mnority communities”, “mnority groups”,
“communities”, “mnorities and other sections of the popul ati on” and “regi ona
groups”. Didthey all denote only religious mnorities and, if so, why the

great variety? Wre the different |anguages spoken in Pakistan, referred to
in paragraph 18, not a sign of ethnic differences, and were they taught in
school s? There had been no response to the Committee's request for
clarification as to whether |anguage should not be construed as a conpound of



CERD/ U SR 1198
page 4

the criteria for defining a mnority. Paragraph 22 of the fourteenth report
did say, however, that mnorities constituted 3.32 per cent of the tota

popul ati on and consi sted of Christians, H ndus, Ahnadis, Parsis, Buddhists and
Si khs, which pronpted the question why those groups were officially considered
mnorities while the linguistic groups, which far exceeded themin nunber,
were not.

9. The Decl aration on the R ghts of Persons Belonging to National or
Ethnic, Religious and Linguistic Mnorities, adopted by the United Nations
Ceneral Assenbly, recogni zed that there were at |east four categories of
mnorities. Mreover, Pakistan's constitutional provision that any section of
citizens having a distinct |anguage, script or culture had the right to
preserve and pronote the sanme and, subject to law, establish institutions for
that purpose could be taken to constitute recognition of the existence of
linguistic and cultural mnorities as well as religious mnorities, and indeed
he considered that in providing such a guarantee, the Constitution showed
great vision and scope

10. The exi stence of “tribal areas” in Pakistan, as reported in the ninth
periodic report (CERD CJ 149/ Add. 12), corroborated clains that there were
ethnic or tribal differences; tribal areas could not be described as religious
mnorities. One reference work (Europa Publications regional survey on the
Far East and Austral asia, 1996) nade that point, referring to the Punjabi as
the principal ethnic group, other najor groups being Sindhi, Pashtun, Wdu and
Bal ochi, while another source nentioned the “Mhajir nation” as an ethnic
group. He asked who were the Kal ash people referred to in paragraph 29 of the
fourteenth report.

11. Referring to the inpressive list of newinstitutions, forunms and schenes
to help solve the problens of mnorities, nmentioned in paragraphs 23-41 of the
report, he requested nore information about the work and effectiveness of
those bodies, particularly the Mnorities Affairs Division. One of the
Division's tasks being to protect mnorities against discrimnation, he asked
what kind of discrimnation was neant. Had the National Comm ssion for
Mnorities al ready considered any of the | aws, executive instructions, orders
or procedural practices referred to in paragraph 25 (a) of the report, which

| aws or practices were concerned and what reconmendati ons had been nade? In
particul ar, had the National Commi ssion considered the present system of
separate electorates for mnorities? Wat exactly was the new system of
representation referred to in paragraph 58 of the report (under art. 14 (c) of
the Constitution)? And in what ways had it enhanced the political right of
mnorities to participate in elections? Had the Nati onal Conm ssion

consi dered the viol ence that had erupted between governnent forces and tribes
in the Mal akand D vision of the North West Frontier Province over the separate
electorate systen? Had it |ooked into any grievances by menbers of mnority
comuni ties and what were the grievances? The Suprene Court had ruled, in
response to a constitutional petition submtted on behalf of over 20 mllion
bonded | abourers and 1.5 mllion nomads denied the right to vote, that redress
could only be sought on an individual basis through the norrmal |egal process;
he asked whether a solution had been found. Wth reference to paragraph 32 of
the report, he wi shed to know what the recomrendati ons of the sem nar on the
uplift of mnorities and the el ectoral systemhad been and whet her they
concerned the systemof separate electorates. The information provided about



CERD CJ SR 1198
page 5

wel fare schenes for mnorities in paragraphs 34-41 was inportant, but woul d
have been better understood if the amounts quoted in rupees had been expressed
in conparative terns, for instance as agai nst annual average per capita

i ncorre.

12. The | arge nunbers of Afghan refugees placed a very heavy burden on

Paki stan, and the Government's efforts to provide themw th shelter and the
hospitality with which they had been received were appreciated. Mich

i nformati on had been provided on the inplenmentation of articles 2, 3, 5 and 7
of the Convention but, regrettably, little in connection with articles 4

and 6. Wth regard to article 2, Pakistan's anti-discrimnation position and
policies were wel coned, but he observed that the definition of racial
discrimnation in article 1, paragraph 1, of the Convention was broader than
the terns used in the Pakistan Constitution, which prohibited discrimnation
based on religion, race, caste or sex. Since article 25 of the Constitution
provided that all citizens were equal before the aw and were entitled to
equal protection of the |aw, he asked what were the legal rights of

non-citi zens, such as the Afghan refugees.

13. Wth reference to paragraph 48 of the report, he said that, according to
Ammesty International, violent conflicts had broken out between different
ethnic, religious and political groups, particularly in Karachi. Information
on whether the National Assenbly had approved several bills, including one on
the abolition of the death penalty and of flogging for mnors, would be

wel cone, as woul d details of the work of a conmission of inquiry that had been
set up to exam ne laws that discrimnated agai nst wonen and to suggest
anmendnents and ot her renedi al neasures.

14, The reference in paragraph 49 to the fact that the State pronoted, with
special care, the educati onal and econom c interests of backward cl asses or
areas was very wel conme. He asked whether there was any specific |egislation
or other instruments which gave effect to that guarantee

15. From paragraph 51, it was clear that the Governnent was trying very hard
to support the social sector by increasing spending on it by 33 per cent and

[ aunchi ng a Soci al Action Programre which, inter alia, covered mnority
affairs. Was the programe fully operational? Had the 30,400 new school s
been built? Had the 9,800 existing schools been renovated? And were the

300 unfinished rural health facilities in Sind and the new 200 rural health
facilities in Baluchistan finished or under construction?

16. There was only one paragraph in the report dealing wth Pakistan's

i npl enentation of article 4 of the Convention, and it did not provide enough
information on relevant |egislation and judicial and normative acts. It
seenmed, however, that Pakistan did not challenge the mandatory nature of that
article. He asked whether the Penal Code had been anended since 1973, when
efforts had been nade to bring its provisions into line with those of the
Convention. Information was needed on how t he Penal Code puni shed acts of
raci al discrimnation, whether there were cases before courts of |aw claimng
racial discrimnation and, if so, howthe courts had dealt with them He
asked how article 4 (b) of the Convention was reflected in Pakistan's domestic
| egi sl ati on and whet her Paki stan had prohi bited any raci st organi zations.



CERD U SR 1198
page 6

17. The information on inplenmentation of article 5 of the Convention
(paras. 56-58 of the report) was both appropriate and useful. Articles 10,
14, 18 and 38 of the Constitution were reproduced and showed how Paki st an was
trying to protect the civil, political and economc, social and cul tura
rights of its citizens. However, there should be nore clarification of the
“far-reaching neasures” referred to in paragraph 57

18. In 1996, Amesty International had reported that 5,000 cases of hunan
rights violations coomitted in 1994 had been investigated. 1In 1995, severa
departnental and judicial inquiries into human rights violations had been
conducted. He asked for infornation on the findings and any follow up and
asked in how rmany of the reported cases racial discrimnation had been
clained. The Commttee would al so wel conme infornmation on whether the
Constitution allowed the fornation and functioning of political parties based
on ethnic and/or religious affiliation.

19. He requested clarification of what was neant by the term*®“anti-nationa
activity” referred to in paragraph 58 and the reference to “any person who for
the time being is an eneny alien”. Wth regard to the sane paragraph, severa

reports, including that of M. N gel Rodley, Special Rapporteur on torture
(E/CN 4/1997/ 7/ Add. 2), had alleged extrajudicial killings in Sind, arned

cl ashes with excessive use of force by governnment troops against the

Mohajir Qaum Movenent (MM factions, the killing of Punjabi |abourers in
Karachi on 2 Novenber 1995, and an increase in ethnic and sectarian tension
They al so alleged that nenbers of the Shi'a and Sunni Mislim organi zati ons had
attacked rival groups, that there had been sectarian clashes in Punjab and
that the credibility of the police had been seriously undermned as a result
of their involvenent in those and other simlar violent incidents. 1In his
report, the Special Rapporteur on the question of religious intolerance

(E/ CN 4/ 1996/ 95/ Add. 1) had quoted non-official sources which alleged that the
Ahnmadi, Christian, Hndu and Zikri mnorities had suffered attacks agai nst
their places of worship initiated by Misli mextrem sts, and nai ntai ned that
State laws in Pakistan on religious mnorities and on tol erance and

non-di scrimnation based on religion or belief were likely to foster

intol erance. The del egation should shed light on those allegations and a
further allegation in the report of the Special Rapporteur on torture

(E/CN 4/1997/ 7/ Add. 2) that the MM (Altaf) faction had consistently clainmed
that its activists were innocent, unarned victins of ethnic violence

20. The report was very short on information about inplenentation of
article 6 of the Convention, which nmeant that the Conmittee was unable to
judge whether it was being inplenented effectively. The reference in
paragraph 59 to the fact that the law did not discrimnate “between the
citizens of Pakistan” raised the question whether non-citizens could be

di scrimnated against. He requested information on the effectiveness of the
Paki stani judicial systemand on its several different court systens and their
jurisdiction. Infornation would al so be wel cone on the Sharia Court and the
decisions it had nmade in 1990 to introduce into Pakistan's Penal Code the
concepts of (Qsas (“an eye for an eye”) and Diyat (“blood noney”). He wondered
what justification there could be for the Hadood ordi nances and whet her under
t hem evi dence was given different weight depending on the religion, ethnic
background and sex of the witness in question. He also asked about the
jurisdiction of the special courts established under the Suppression of



CERD U SR 1198
page 7

Terrorist Activities Act and whether they had been abolished. On the positive
side, he wel coned the abolition of the Punishment of Wi ppi ng Act, 1996.

21. The information on article 7 of the Convention was extrenely useful; the
Cover nnent shoul d be commended for recogni zing the key role of education. A

M nistry of Human Rights had been established and had al ready | aunched an

awar eness programme to boost know edge of human and legal rights. It would be
interesting to hear nore about the programme and the terns of reference of the
Mnistry itself. The Pakistan authorities should al so be commended for their
plans to include human rights in school curricula. The Governnent shoul d take
heed of the Conmttee's General Recommendation V, which focused on article 7
of the Convention

22. He wel coned the contents of paragraph 65 of the report and paid tribute
to the Governnent for its policy of denocratizing culture, decentralizing
activities to give recognition to the regional heritage of |anguages and
literature, revitalizing cultural institutions and pronoting the equa
participation of wonen in all sectors.

23. Lastly, he expressed appreciation for the work of M. Shahi, a nenber of
the Commttee and a Paki stan national, in relation to the Wrld Conference on
Human R ghts and the contributi on he had nmade to the Vi enna Decl arati on and
Programe of Action.

24, M. WO FRUM wel comed the renewed di al ogue with Pakistan. In his
opi ni on, however, the report was rather disappointing in that there was very
little information on the practical inplenmentation of the Convention or on
cases, judgenents or admnistrative actions concerning the question of racia
discrimnation. H's second criticismwas that Pakistan's definition of
mnorities was unclear and failed to recogni ze | anguage as an indicator of
ethnic identity.

25. Wth regard to legislation on representation of mnorities in the

| egi sl ature, mentioned in paragraph 58 of the report, and anmendnents to the
system further information was needed on the former systemand on what had
replaced it. He would also wel cone clarification of why the word “woul d” had
been used in reference to mnorities' right to vote for their representatives.
He also invited the delegation to explain what was neant by “hardshi ps” facing
mnority conmmunities, as mentioned in paragraph 32. The report was al so short
on details regarding Bal uchi stan and the Federally Adm nistered Tribal Areas,
particularly who lived in such areas and why they were federally adm ni stered.

26. During consideration of the ninth periodic report of Pakistan, the
Conmmi ttee had expressed dismay at the poor inplenentation of article 4. Qven
that fact, it was even nore unsatisfactory that there should be only one
paragraph in the current report regarding inplenentation of that article.

27. There appeared to be only one reference in the entire report (in

para. 18) to the North Wst Frontier Province (NWP). He would like further
information on the legal situation in that area, and comrents on a report that
the Constitution was not fully applied in the Province and that it had a
special judicial systemand laws. Had the inhabitants of the Province
participated in elections to the Pakistan Parliament?



CERD U SR 1198
page 8

28. The informati on in paragraph 59 of the report on the court system needed
to be supplenmented in order to enable the Conmmttee to judge whether article 6
of the Convention was being fully inplenented.

29. The huge influx of immgrants fromlndia into Pakistan over the years
had apparently led to a change in Pakistan's denographi ¢ conposition. He
asked whether that was true, whether Indian inmmgrants had noved nostly to
urban areas and what their social and economc situation was. Al so, with
regard to refugees from Bangl adesh, details of the extent to which they had
been able to integrate into Paki stan's econonic and social life would be

wel corre.

30. M. de GOQUTTES asked in relation to paragraphs 15-17 of the report when
it would be possible for the Commttee to have informati on on the exact
conposition of the population and if the Governnment had considered including
guestions on the ethnic origins of the population in any subsequent census,

gi ven the inportance of such infornation

31. Turning to paragraph 55 of the report, he rem nded the del egation that
fol | owi ng consideration of Pakistan's ninth report (CERD 149/ Add. 12), the
Committee, in its concluding observations, had expressed concern that the word
“di sharnmony” used in the Penal Code was considered by the authorities to be
broad enough to cover every conceivable act of racial incitement. He wondered
whet her any additional |egislation had been enacted since then to ensure that
all legislative instruments were in full conformty with article 4 of the
Convent i on.

32. Concer ni ng paragraph 59 of the report, he noted that no exanpl es had
been gi ven of cases in which the provisions of the Penal Code punishing acts
of racismhad been applied. He hoped that in the next report Pakistan could
at |least provide statistics on conplaints | odged, judgenents delivered and
redress ordered for the victins of ethnic or racial discrimnation.

33. He woul d |ike to know whether the Islamc courts could still inpose
corporal punishrment under Islamc |law and, if so, what formit took. Could
the Islamc courts intervene in cases involving acts of ethnic and raci al

di scrim nati on?

34. He regretted that the report did not contain enough concrete information
on the actual inplenentation of article 5. It would appear that

di scrimnation existed against certain mnorities, foreigners and i nmgrants
in the areas of econonmic and social rights, particularly with regard to the
right to work, housing, health care and social services.

35. Ms. ZQU Deci  said that although religious differences were inportant,
they did not constitute a criterion for defining mnorities. In China,
conparatively few nenbers of the | argest ethnic group, the Han, were

Buddhi sts, whereas certain Chinese mnorities, such as the Tibetans and the
Mongol s, were largely Buddhist. [In Pakistan, the nain religion was Islam yet
sone Miuslins in Pakistan were victins of discrimnation. That suggested that
it was not necessarily appropriate to define mnorities on the basis of
religion




CERD CJ SR 1198
page 9

36. Par agraph 22 of Pakistan's fourteenth report spoke above all of
religious mnorities, and paragraphs 23-25 nentioned various institutions

whi ch had been established to resolve the problens faced by mnorities. She
woul d |ike to know whether those institutions dealt with religious mnorities.
Al so, were the Kal ash people, to whomreference was nmade in paragraph 29, also
areligious mnority? Mre generally, did Pakistan use other criteria for
defining mnorities apart fromreligion?

37. Paragraph 51 of the report cited efforts being nmade by the Governnment to
ensure the health and welfare of its people, but provided no information on
how that related specifically to mnorities. Paragraph 60 stated that the
literacy rate in Pakistan was still only 35 per cent, but that was for the
country as a whole. Wat was the figure for mnorities?

38. Article 4 of the Convention was very inportant, but the report only
contai ned one paragraph relating to it. She inquired which provisions of the
Penal Code ensured conpliance with article 4 and how | egi sl ati on was actual |y
i npl enented. Were there organi zati ons in Pakistan whi ch engaged in
discrimnation in everyday life? And had acts of discrimnation been
commtted? |If so, how did the Government respond?

39. To sumup, the report of Pakistan did not give a full picture of the
situation of mnorities in that country. She therefore hoped that nore
i nformati on woul d be provided in the next report.

40. M. YUTZIS said that, |ike other menbers of the Committee, he questioned
the statements contained i n paragraphs 47 and 48 of the report, and in
particul ar the assertion that Pakistan had never engaged in any act or

practice of racial discrimnation against persons, groups of persons or
institutions (para. 48 (a)).

41. Referring to paragraph 29 on the setting-up of a National Commttee on
t he Kal ash Peopl e, he asked what the actual situation of that people was and
what had | ed the Covernnent of Pakistan to establish such a body.

42. It was not clear to himwhy the National Conm ssion for Mnorities
needed to ensure the full and effective participation and associ ation of
mnorities with their religious and cultural festivals and cel ebrations
(para. 25 (c)). D d such mnorities have transport problens? D d they not
have the resources to hold such festival s?

43. Concer ni ng paragraph 33, he would |ike to know what were the specific
probl ems which mnorities confronted. The paragraph spoke of a specia
nmeeting on matters relating to mnorities, and he inquired what its results
had been. It also noted that the nmeeting had nade recommendati ons regardi ng
the reactivation of the district mnority commttees, to which reference had
been nade in paragraph 28; he wondered whether those committees had not been
wor ki ng wel | .

44, What measures had energed fromthe Federal Advisory Council for Mnority
Affairs (para. 26)? Wat results had been produced by the National Commttee
on the Kal ash People (para. 29)? Wat decisions had been taken follow ng the
nmonthly neetings with nenbers of the National Assenbly (para. 30)? Was there
any information to gauge the effectiveness of the bodies set up at the |oca

| evel (para. 31)?



CERD U SR 1198
page 10

45, He had received information on an ethnic and linguistic group, the
Mohajirs, who lived in Sind province. The nenbers of that group maintai ned
that they had been the victins of discrimnation. For instance, they had
cited legislation nmaking Sindhi the official |anguage. As there were nmany
Mohajirs in that province, what did people do who did not speak Sindhi? Al so
according to the informati on he had received, there was a quota systemfor
jobs and education which favoured the Sindhis and di scrimnated agai nst the
Mohajirs. He hoped that the del egation of Pakistan could comrent on those
allegations or that clarification could be provided at the next session. It
was such allegations that made it hard for himto accept the assertion in
paragraph 47 that there was no discrimnation in Pakistan.

46. M. DIACONU said that the report of Pakistan would seemto suggest that
that country had the nost advanced | egislation in southern Asia for conbating
raci al discrimnation and protecting mnorities. But the Commttee needed to
know how that |egislation was actually inplenented. If, as stated in
paragraph 22 of the report, minorities only nade up 3.32 per cent of the tota
popul ati on, that notion seenmed too limted, and the Committee woul d need nore
i nformation.

47. Paki stan's | egislation and Constitution prohibited discrimnation on the
basis of caste. He inquired what that termwas taken to nean in Pakistan

Did it have ethnic or national connotations, or was it nerely an econom c
concept ?

48. Regarding article 4 of the Convention, apparently Pakistan's |egislation
did not prohibit organizations which pronoted or incited racia

di scrimnation. Could the delegation of Pakistan clarify that point?

Paki stan was unique in that it had both a Mnister for Human R ghts and a
Mnister for Mnority Affairs. Wat were the areas of responsibility of those
two mnisters?

49. The CHAIRVAN , speaking in his capacity as a nenber of the Commttee,
said that the Convention did not use the word “mnority” and required a
reporting State not to define that term but to protect against |ess

favourabl e treat nent groups of persons distingui shed, inter alia, by descent
or by national or ethnic origin. The Conmmttee would need to focus on the
characteristics of a group of persons distinguished by ethnic origin. It was

easy to say that the Balochis filled that description, on account of their

| anguage and custons and the territory on which they lived. But it was al so
possible to say that a group of persons was distinguished by ethnic origin

wi thout having any of the three attributes nenti oned above. Sone experts on
ethnic relations regarded the Mhajirs as being such a case. It was comon to
ook to the past to find out about origins, yet ethnic groups were being
created all the tine. Perhaps the Mhajirs, whose origins could be traced
back to 1948, were the world' s youngest ethnic group. As he sawit, it would
be wong to reject out of hand the view that the Mohajirs were a group

di stingui shed by ethnic origin. They certainly had a political dinension, but
the Commttee had frequently noted a mxture of ethnic and political factors
when di sti ngui shing groups.

50. Anot her group worth nentioning in that context was known as the Shidis,
descendants of Africans brought to the subcontinent as slaves. Present in
Paki st an, where they were distingui shed by a darker conpl exion, the Shidis
mai ntai ned that they had experienced | ess favourable treatment on account of



CERD U SR 1198
page 11

their colour. It was to be hoped that the next report of Pakistan woul d
provide information on the situation of both the Mdhajirs and the Shidis

51. M. van BOVEN said that although it was not legally obliged to do so,
the Government of Pakistan had invited thematic rapporteurs of the Conmmi ssion
on Human Rights to visit and report on the situation in the country. That was
a sign of constructive cooperati on.

52. Long- st andi ng di scussion of the relationship between racial and
religious issues had resulted in the adopti on of separate internationa
instruments on racial discrimnation and religious intolerance. Nonetheless,
it was not possible to draw neat separations between religious practice and
racial origin, as the two were often closely linked. It was therefore not
surprising that Pakistan considered it relevant to draw attention to religious
mnorities inits report.

53. In connection with paragraph 33 of the report, he inquired whether the
prom nent nenbers of minority comunities who had met with the Senator in
charge of human rights belonged to the mnorities nentioned in paragraph 22.
Referring specifically to the situation of the Ahnadis, who were victins of

wi despread discrimnation, including restricted access to enpl oynent and
pronoti on, he pointed out that the Special Rapporteur on religious intolerance
had concl uded, in paragraph 82 of his report, that the |aw applicable to
Ahmadi s i n Paki stan was questi onabl e.

54. Al t hough the Comm ttee doubted the clains, nmade in paragraphs 48 and 54
of the report, that there had never been racial discrimnation in Pakistan,
the Government had certainly taken effective nmeasures to prevent acts of
discrimnation. The Commttee | ooked forward to receiving information on the
role of the courts in the subsequent report. He asked whether the right of
persons to seek redress for infringements of their rights, as stated in

par agraph 59, included conpensation for injury suffered.

55. I n concl usi on, he expressed the hope that Pakistan woul d soon ratify the
amendnent to article 8, paragraph 6, which had been adopted by the

General Assenbly, as it would serve to strengthen the Conmittee's

adm ni strative and financial base. He also urged the Governnment to conply
with the General Assenbly reconmrendation that State parties should give wide
publicity to reports submtted to treaty bodies, and al so the concl udi ng
observations nmade by those bodi es.

56. M. FERRERO COSTA said that the report nade general statenents on
principles but did not provide enough information for the Commttee to assess
Paki stan's fulfilment of the requirenments of the Convention. He hoped that
future reports woul d give nore specific replies to the issues raised.

57. C ains of the non-existence of racial discrimnation were unacceptabl e.
Wil e recogni zing the tremendous difficulties faced by States, it was

i npl ausi ble that a multi-ethnic country with 137 nillion inhabitants, such as
Paki stan, would be free fromracial discrimnation.

58. He joined his colleagues in calling for the full inplenentation of
article 4 of the Convention. Paragraph 55 of the report shoul d have contai ned
information to the effect that |egislation in Pakistan prohibited

or gani zat i ons whose doctrines led to the incitenent of racial hatred or



CERD U SR 1198
page 12

di scrimnation. There was al so need for further explanation of how Paki stan
provi ded effective protection and renedi es agai nst violations of human rights
and fundanmental freedons, as required under article 6.

59. The establishnent of the Mnistry of Human R ghts was highly
comrendabl e and set an inportant exanple for other States parties. He w shed
to know nore about the scope and functions of that Mnistry, as well as the
content of the various programmes ai ned at increasing public awareness.

60. He expressed concern at the adm ssion, in paragraph 60, of a 35 per cent
literacy rate in Pakistan, and asked what |iteracy programres had been
devised. How did the Governnent deal with the diversity of |anguages in the
pronmotion of its literacy canpai gns, given the fact that only 7.6 per cent of
t he popul ati on spoke the national |anguage, Wdu? The question of |anguages
al so conprised the rights of citizens in court proceedings. He wondered what
provisions, in terns of |anguage, were nmade in the courts for the najority of
the popul ati on who did not speak Urdu.

61. The ideal s expressed in paragraph 65 were wel cone, and he asked for
further information on how they were put into practice.

62. M. ABOL-NASR invited the delegation to clarify the meaning of
"Mhajir", as it was his understanding that the termdid not designate a
particular race or ethnic origin. He also requested clarification of the
overl ap between the concept of race and religion; the Commttee should focus
on the areas covered by the Convention

63. The CHAIRVAN , speaking in his capacity as a nenber of the Commttee,
expl ained that his reference to people of darker skin colour was to a group of
descendants of forner African slaves, and not to Mhajirs.

64. M. AHVADU thanked the delegation for its report. He agreed that

Paki stan had reached an advanced stage in | egislation on raci al

di scrimnation, conpared with other States in the region and i ndeed wi th ot her
Islamc States. He asked for further information on the Ahnadis and the
status of Wdu. 1In conclusion, he observed that the courts of Pakistan were
fanous for their | andmark judgements.

65. M. AKRAM (Pakistan) expressed gratitude for the profound interest
expressed by the Conmittee in the situation in his country; he woul d be happy
to nmake conprehensive responses to the various questions at the follow ng
neeti ng.

The neeting rose at 5.55 p.m




